Grand Rapids - Kent County

Convention/Arena Authority

Wednesday, May 23, 2001
7:30a.m. — 9:30a.m.
County Administration Building Board Room, 3™ Floor
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

AGENDA
L Call to Order
II. Review and Approval of the Minutes of the April 25, 2001 Action
Meeting of the CAA
[I.  Public Comment
IV.  Presentation of Operating Budgets Information
. SMG — Rich MacKeigan
. CAA — Robert White
V. Appointment and Approval of Employment Agreement for Action

the Administrative Manager Position
VI.  Approval of Formal SMG Agreement — Dick Wendt Action

VII. Committee Reports
a. Building Committee
b. Operations Committee
c. Finance Committee

VIII. SMG Report
-Facilities Calendar Information
-Hosting of Future CAA Meetings

IX. Other Business

X. Future Business

Competitive Bidding - Operations

Competitive Bidding - Construction

Establish Change Order Approval Process
Conflict of Interest Policy

Parking Lease CAA/City

Memorandum of Understanding — Grand Action

o e o P



XI.  Next Meeting Date — June 27, 2001

XII.  Adjournment

Distribution:
Convention/Arena Authority:

Steve Heacock, Chair

David Frey, Vice-Chair

Birgit Klohs, Secretary/Treasurer
Mayor John Logie

Joe Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin

Clif Charles

Staff:

Kurt Kimball, City of Grand Rapids
Eric DeLong, City of Grand Rapids
Robert White, City of Grand Rapids
Bill Cole, City of Grand Rapids
Dianette Hight, City of Grand Rapids
Daryl Delabbio, Kent County

Al Vanderberg, Kent County

Dave Waichum, Kent County

Committee Members:
John Canepa

Milt Rohwer

Robert Herr

Tom Carnegie

Robert Hooker

Don Maine

Jim Leach, Kent County

Dick Wendt, Legal Counsel

Dale Sommers, Contracted Owner’s Rep
Jim Knack, DDA

Rich MacKeigan, SMG

Jim Day, Kent County

Other:

Ingrid Scott-Weekley = Marty Allen
Tim Wondergem Peter Ross
Don Hunt Jon Nunn
Media Ellen James
Jack Naudi

Steve Wilson



dlem L

DRAFT

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, April 25,2001

Call to Order

The meeting was called to order by Chair Steve Heacock at 7:37 a.m., at the
County Administration Building. Mr. Heacock presided and Ms. Eileen Pierce
recorded.

Attendance

Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chair
David Frey, Vice-Chair
Clif Charles
Lew Chamberlin
Joe Tomaselli
Mayor John Logie
Members Absent: Birgit Klohs, Secretary/Treasurer

Staff/Others: Authority
Dale Sommers, CAA Representative
Dick Wendt, Legal Counsel from Dickinson -Wright

Grand Rapids Kent County SMG

Kurt Kimball Daryl Delabbio Richard MacKeigan
Ted Perez Al Vanderberg Chris Machuta

Jana Wallace Jim Day

Eileen Pierce

Grand Rapids Symphony
Bill Ryberg, President

Other

Jon Nunn, Grand Action

Jack Naudi, Grand Rapids Press

Steve Wilson, CVB

Mike Poggi, Authority Insurance Consultant

No changes were made to the agenda.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting E
April 25, 2001 - Page 2 DR A y

II. Minutes of Prior Meeting
Motion: Director Frey, supported by Mayor Logie, moved to approve the minutes
of the March 28, 2001 meeting of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.

I1I. Public Comment - None

IV.  Presentation
Grand Rapids Symphony — Bill Ryberg, President
Mr. Ryberg presented an organization chart and an overview of facts about the
symphony.

V. Grand Center Parking Advisory
Mr. Ted Perez reviewed the impact of closing the Grand Center parking ramp. He
indicated that the City has increased staff for parking operations, has an extensive
communication program, and has modified the shuttle program to minimize the
impact of the ramp closure.

VI.  Update on Permanent Staffing
Chair Heacock announced that Sue Waddell has accepted the position of
Administrative Manager for the Convention Arena Authority and that her office
will be located at the arena.

VII.  Approval of Amendment to Construction Manager Agreement
Motion: Director Frey, supported by Director Chamberlin, moved to amend the
Construction Manager Agreement to use the St. Paul program for the Contractor
Controlled Insurance Program (CCIP) with a $250,000 deductible at an
estimated cost of $3,424,291. Motion carried unanimously.

VIII. Finance Committee Agenda
a. March 15, 2001 minutes to be approved at the next regularly scheduled

Finance Committee meeting.
b. SMG March Financial Reports

Motion: Mayor Logie, supported by Director Frey moved to approve
the March 2001 Convention/Arena Authority financial statements for
the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center as presented. Motion carried
unanimously.

c. Approval of Paid Invoices
Mayor Logie, supported by Director Frey, moved to approve payment
of invoices totaling $842,007.33 as presented. Motion carried

unanimously.

d. Approval of CAA March Financial Report



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting D R A F T

April 25,2001 — Page 3

Mayor Logie, supported by Director Frey, moved to approve the
Convention/Arena Authority Interim Financial Statements dated from
inception June 20, 2000 to March 31, 2001 as presented by Beene,
Garter LLP. Motion carried unanimously.

Mr. Chris Machuta from SMG reported that attendance for the public shows was
better than expected. Some smaller shows have not done as well. Although the
4™ quarter is less than expected, the fiscal year figures should still be ahead of
budget. March was the best month for this fiscal year of the Arena, due in large
part to the Big 10 Women’s Basketball, and NCAA Hockey events that both
produced single session records. May looks promising with a Bon Jovi concert
on May 8 that is already sold out.

Chris Machuta and Rich MacKeigan reported that SMG has submitted a claim
through the Hoops bankruptcy, but expect little return on the dollar. The
financial loss for a 28 game home schedule is $110-120,000. However, the loss
is offset by about $60,000 due to increased flexibility in the calendar to book
other events and savings on permanent advertising.

Jana Wallace reported that an RFP for auditing services has been issued and
responses are due May 9. The Finance Committee will make one
recommendation to the Authority for approval. It was noted that a five-year
contract is being pursued and that the chosen bid does not have to be the lowest,
since there are several criteria to be considered.

Director Charles inquired about the higher than anticipated legal services. Ms.
Wallace and Mr. Richard Wendt explained that many costs were incurred due to
transition issues, and that the fees are a combination of construction and
operating costs.

Chair Heacock commented that he would be in favor of periodically conducting
the Finance Committee meetings during the Authority meetings.

Building Committee
Director Frey reported that the demo work of DeVos Hall Lobby began on April

16 and the parking ramp demolition will begin April 30.

The Building Committee received an update on timelines, and in order to have a
new Welsh Ballroom done by December 31, 2004, it will require starting
demolition in May 2003. This has caused some concern about loss of space for
events. For every month of delay, the added construction cost is between
$360,000 and $400,000 and the Ballroom date to open will be later.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting

DRAFT

XIL

Operations Committee

Director Chamberlin reported that the Operations Committee had no action items.
The Committee took a tour of the Grand Center that proved to be beneficial.
Director Frey suggested that the Authority might want to consider a walkthrough.
Mr. MacKeigan suggested that a walk-through during busy times when the venues
are changing would be most ideal.

Finance Committee
Refer to Item VIII, Finance Committee Agenda.

SMG Report

Facilities Calendar

Mr. Rich MacKeigan stated that the upcoming weekend would be the busiest,
with 4 events in 3 days. In May there will be Bon Jovi, bull riders, Carmen, and
the boxing event. Rod Stewart and James Taylor are lined up and there will most
likely be an additional Motorsports show.

Other Business
None.

Future Business

Competitive Bidding — Operations
Competitive Bidding — Construction
Establish Change Order Approval Process
Conflict of Interest Policy

Audit RFP

Parking Lease CAA/City

Formal SMG Agreement

Approval of Operating Budgets
Bookkeeping Services
Memorandum of Understanding — Grand Action

T E@ e a0 o P

Next Meeting Date

The next meeting date will be May 23, 2001. The location will be in the County
Administration Building, Commissioners’ Board Room.

Adjournment
There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:00 a.m.

Birgit Klohs
Secretary/Treasurer
/elp



A T M =

CITY OF GRAND RAPRPIDS

DATE: May 10, 2001

TO: Birgit Klohs, Chair
Convention/Arena Authority Finance Committee

FROM:  Robert]. Whitilﬂ
Assistant City er - Fiscal Services

SUBJECT: C/AA Financial Position
FY 2001 Budget Update
FY 2002 Recommended Budget

Immediately preceding this item on the Finance Committee agenda you will find the FY
2002 “Facility Operation” budget submissions as prepared by SMG representatives. This
agenda item consolidates the facility manager financial activities with those of the
administrative and capital replacement reserve accounts for the purpose of providing an
overall financial perspective concerning Authority operations.

The attached financial report provides detailed cash flow forecasts comprised of the
original and updated budgets for FY 2001 and a budget request for FY 2002. Statement
A contained therein summarizes this information. Highlights of that summary include
the following:

e Net Operating Income generated from “Facilities Operation” will decline from a
current estimate of $1.4 million to an amount slightly in excess of $726,000 in the
upcoming fiscal year. Additional details concerning this decline in net operating
income is provided in the SMG “Facilities Operation” agenda item.

e The administrative expenses of the C/AA will increase from the current year estimate
of $135,638 to $160,000 in the upcoming fiscal year. This is primarily due to the first
full year expense of the administrative position. Line item details concerning this
budget item are available in Statement G.

e The $3 million working capital reserve will be maintained through the end (June 30,
2002) of the upcoming fiscal year.

C:\My Documents\CONVENTION FACILITIES\05100100.doc



e Based on current estimates, the C/AA will be able to set aside $429,439 in the capital
replacement reserve account, of which $329,265 will be expended on capital replacements at
the two facilities. The net effect of these transactions will provide for a balance slightly in
excess of $1.15 million at June 30, 2001.

e During FY 2002 the Authority would commit $237,000 of this capital replacement reserve
balance to additional capital replacement items and will transfer back $333,357 to the C/AA
administration account in order to gain the $3 million working capital position.

e The priorities of available resources are first, to maintain the $3 million operating reserve;
second, to provide for the $1 million annual pledge transfers to the capital construction
account and third, add up to $500,000 (inflation adjusted) of net facility operating income to
the capital replacement reserve of the C/AA. During FY 2002 the third priority will not be
achieved.

It is anticipated that a presentation of this material will be made to both the Finance Committee

and the full Board during regularly scheduled sessions in May, with consideration of a request
for adoption included in the June 2001 Board agenda.

RIW/kIm

Attachments

C:\My Documents\CONVENTION FACILITIES\05100! 00.doc



CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
FINANCIAL UPDATE / BUDGET REQUEST

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTS

ORIGINAL BUDGET - FY 2001
SMG CASHFLOWS
CAA CASHFLOWS

CURRENT ESTIMATES - FY 2001
SMG CASHFLOWS
CAA CASHFLOWS

BUDGET REQUEST - FY 2002
SMG CASHFLOWS
CAA CASHFLOWS

TABLE OF CONTENTS
May 10, 2001

STATEMENT

A

@m



05100100.xIs

STATEMENT A

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

SUMMARY FUND STATEMENT
May 10, 2001
FY 2001 FY 2002
ORIGINAL CURRENT RECOMMENDED
BUDGET ESTIMATES BUDGET
FACILITIES OPERATION (SMG)
Revenues $6,625,253 $ 6,481,839 $ 5,879,327
Expenses (5,282,246) (5,026,762) (5,152,684)
Net Operating Income $ 1,343,007 $ 1,455,077 $ 726,643
CAA ADMINISTRATION
Revenues:
Transfer from SMG $ 1,343,007 $ 1,455,077 $ 726,643
Interest - 60,000 100,000
Transfer (to) from Capital Reserve (243,007) (379,439) 333,357
Transfer to Capital Construction (1,000,000) (1,000,000) (1,000,000)
100,000 135,638 160,000
Administration (100,000) (135,638) (160,000)
Excess of Revenues over Expenses - - N
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000
CAPITAL REPLACEMENT RESERVE
Transfer from (to) CAA Administration $ 243,007 $ 379,439 $ (333,357)
Interest - 50,000 40,000
243,007 429,439 (293,357)
Capital Replacement/Acquisitions (269,000) (329,265) (237,000)
(25,993) 100,174 (530,357)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 975,000 1,055,462 1,155,636
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 949,007 $ 1,155,636 $ 625,279




05100001.xIs

Operating Revenues:
Events
Suites/Premium Seats
Advertising
Other

Direct Operating Expenses:*
Labor
Base Management Fee
Insurance
Security
Other

Excess
Less: Capital Replacement

Net Available to Authority:

NOTES:

STATEMENT B

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
FACILITIES MANAGEMENT CONTRACT
NET AVAILABLE TO THE AUTHORITY
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2001

May 10, 2000

VAN ANDEL

ARENA'

$ 2,732,531
810,000
517,255
278,304

4,338,090

978,165
260,981
253,436
190,000
669,403

2,351,985

1,986,105

166,000

$ 1,820,105

GRAND

CENTER'

$2,198,163

89,000

__ 2,287,163

776,731
174,005
175,000

554,490

1,680,226

606,937

103,000

S 503997

TOTAL

$6,625,253

4,032,211

2,593,042

269,000

$2,324,042

1Summary of SMG proposed operating/capital replacement budget recommendations as submitted
to the Authority Boad on April 18, 2000.

Direct Operating Expenses"” excludes operating expenses incurred for utilities and Facility Manager

Contract - incentive fees which will be paid from the Authority operating account.



05160001.xls

STATEMENT C
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

FUND STATEMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2001
May 10, 2000
CAPITAL
OPERATIONS REPLACEMENT CONSTRUCTION TOTAL
Fund Balances, beg. of year $ - $ - $ - $ -
Additions:
initial (7/1) DDA Transfer 3,000,000 975,000 - 3,975,000
State Participation - - 35,000,000 35,000,000
Net Available to Authority’ 2,350,035 (25,993) 2,324,042
Facility Capital Transfer? (1,000,000) - 1,000,000 -
4,350,035 949,007 36,000,000 41,299,042
Deductions:

New Construction - - 36,000,000 36,000,000
Direct Pay Utilities 1,134,000 - - 1,134,000
SMG Incentive Fees 116,035 - - 116,035

Administration:
Legal/Bookkeeping/Auditing 40,000 - - 40,000
Insurance (D & O) 13,500 - - 13,500
Staff Services 36,500 - - 36,500
Other 10,000 - - 10,000
1,350,035 - 36,000,000 37,350,035
Fund Balances, end of year $ 3,000,000 $ 949,007 $ - $ 3,949,007

NOTES:

"The "Net Available to Authority" is allocated first to the Operations account in an amount sufficient to maintain
an anticipated $3 million minimum reserve with the balance allocated to the Capital Replacement reserve.

2The first of ten annual transfers from the Operating Reserve to the Capital Construction sub-fund by the C/AA

in fulfillment of a City/DDA pledge toward the project budget.



05080100.xIs

Operating Revenues:
Events
Suites/Premium Seats
Advertising
Other

Direct Operating Expenses:2
Labor
Base Management Fee
Insurance
Security
Other

Excess
Less: Capital Replacement

Net Available to Authority:

NOTES:

STATEMENT D

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
FACILITIES MANAGEMENT CONTRACT
NET AVAILABLE TO THE AUTHORITY
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2001

May 8, 2001

VAN ANDEL

ARENA'

$ 2,795,015
810,000
517,255
278,304

4,400,574

968,246
262,185
127,547
191,872
675,660

2,225,510

2,175,064

226,265

_$1048799

GRAND

CENTER'

$ 1,963,659

117,606

2,081,265

753,771
174,005
127,365

50,076
479,681

1,584,898

496,367

103,000

$ 393,367

TOTAL

$6,481,839

3,810,408

2,671,431

329,265

82,342,166 _

'Summary of SMG proposed operating/capital replacement budget recommendations as submitted

to the Authority Finance Committee on May 17, 2001.

2Direct Operating Expenses” excludes operating expenses incurred for utilities and Facility Manager

Contract - incentive fees which will be paid from the Authority operating account.



05080101.xls

STATEMENT

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

E

FUND STATEMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2001
May 8, 2001
CAPITAL
OPERATIONS REPLACEMENT CONSTRUCTION TOTAL
Fund Balances, beg. of year $ - $ - - $ -
Additions:
Initial (7/1) DDA Transfer 3,000,000 1,055,462 - 4,055,462
State Participation - - 35,000,000 35,000,000
Net Available to Authority1 2,291,992 50,174 2,342,166
interest 60,000 50,000 750,000 860,000
Facility Capital Transfer? (1,000,000) - 1,000,000 -
4,351,992 1,155,636 36,750,000 42,257,628
Deductions:

New Construction - - 36,750,000 36,750,000
Direct Pay Utilities 1,134,336 - - 1,134,336
SMG Incentive Fees 82,018 - - 82,018

Administration:
Legal 100,000 - - 100,000
Bookeeping/Auditing 10,000 10,000
Insurance (D & O) 14,638 - - 14,638
Staff Services 10,000 - - 10,000
Other 1,000 - - 1,000
1,351,992 - 36,750,000 38,101,992
Fund Balances, end of year $ 3,000,000 3 1,155,636 - $4,155,636

NOTES:

'The "Net Available to Authority" is allocated first to the Operations account in an amount sufficient to maintain
an anticipated $3 million minimum reserve with the balance allocated to the Capital Replacement reserve.

2The first of ten annual transfers from the Operating Reserve to the Capital Construction sub-fund by the C/AA

in fulfillment of a City/DDA pledge toward the.project budget.



05080102.xis

Operating Revenues:
Events
Suites/Premium Seats
Advertising
Other

Direct Operating Expenses:*
Labor
Base Management Fee
Insurance
Security
Other

Excess
Less: Capital Replacement

Net Available to Authority:

NOTES:

STATEMENT F

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
FACILITIES MANAGEMENT CONTRACT
NET AVAILABLE TO THE AUTHORITY

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2002

May 8, 2001

VAN ANDEL

ARENA'

$ 2,410,115
956,175
503,506
240,000

4,109,796

933,522
225,000
138,149
198,000
692,521

2,187,192

1,922,604

125,000

$ 1,797,604

GRAND

CENTER!

$ 1,633,531

136,000

1,769,531

866,505
225,000
102,997

62,400
502,790

1,759,692

9,839

112,000

$ (102,161)

TOTAL

$ 5,879,327

3,946,884

1,932,443

237,000

$1,695.443

'Summary of SMG proposed operating/capital replacement budget recommendations as submitted

to the Authority Finance Committee on May 17, 2001

2Direct Operating Expenses" excludes operating expenses incurred for utilities and Facility Manager

Contract - incentive fees which will be paid from the Authority operating account.



05080103.xls

STATEMENT G
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

____.__FUND STATEMENT .
__FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2002
May 8, 2001
CAPITAL
OPERATIONS REPLACEMENT CONSTRUCTION TOTAL
Fund Balances, beg. of year $ 3,000,000 $ 1,155,636 $ - $4,155,636
Additions:
State Participation - - 30,000,000 30,000,000
Interest 100,000 40,000 500,000 640,000
Net Available to Authority’ 2,265,800 (570,357) 1,695,443
Facility Capital Transfer® (1,000,000) - 1,000,000 -
1,365,800 (530,357) 31,500,000 32,335,443
Deductions:

New Construction - - 31,500,000 31,500,000
Direct Pay Utilities 1,205,800 - - 1,205,800
SMG Incentive Fees - - - -
Administration:

Legal 40,000 - - 40,000

Bookkeeping/Auditing 20,000 20,000

Insurance (D & O) 15,000 - - 15,000

Staff Services 75,000 - - 75,000

Other 10,000 - - 10,000

1,365,800 - 31,500,000 32,865,800

Fund Balances, end of year $ 3,000,000 $ 625,279 $ - $ 3,625,279
NOTES:

The "Net Available to Authority"” is allocated first to the Operations account in an amount sufficient to maintain
an anticipated $3 million minimum reserve with the balance allocated to the Capital Replacement reserve.

2The first of ten annual transfers from the Operating Reserve to the Capital Construction sub-fund by the C/AA
in fulfillment of a City/DDA pledge toward the project budget.



L Tewy jy

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS

DATE: May 15, 2001

TO: Birgit Klohs, Chair
Convention/Arena Authority Finance Committee

FROM: Robert J. White /5
Assistant City Marfager - Flscal Services

SUBJECT: Finance Committee Agenda for May 17, 2001
Item Number X. Substitute — SMG FY 2002 Budget

The attached material should be substituted in its entirety for agenda item number X.
included in the original agenda packet.

There are no changes in revenue estimates or appropriation requests from those included
in the original packet item. The attached material provides supplemental background
material, which should make it easier to understand the FY 2002 budget request in
comparison to current year budgetary estimates.

If you have any questions please call me at 456-3950.

RIW/kim
Attachment

cc:  Rich MacKeigan

C:\My Documents\CAA FINANCE COMMITTEE\05150100.doc



Van Andel Arena/

Gp) Grand Center

Privete Roaspimest fot Pybite Foclittes

Memorandum

To:

From:

Date:

Re:

CAA - Finance Committee

Chris Machuta - Director of Finance
Richard MacKeigan

Friday, May 11, 2001

Grand Center Budget

The upcoming fiscal year is one of transition for the Grand Center, as construction will continue to have
an operational effect on the financial success of the facility. The following are a list of items that | feel
need to be pointed out as they vary from traditional trends at the facility.

Revenues

The meeting room space is being cut in half. Some larger shows that have required all of the
meeting rooms are now unable to use the facility due to current space allowances, as well as,
many smaller shows that used only the meeting rooms no longer fit in the building (Bureau of
Education and Research, and Institute for Natural Resources). This will mean an estimated
$65,500 is lost rental revenue, and $13,000 in lost ancillary revenue. AMCON and ITEC are
examples of larger shows that will not be using the building for the next couple of years,
however, plan on using the new facility when it is open.

The larger shows that use the whole facility will show a decrease in rental revenue of $31,000
due to less available square footage. MACL and Woodworkers are examples of the larger
events that will continue to use the building, however, rentable space has decreased. The
facility however, generates a larger portion of its revenue from these events through ancillary
income; this decrease is expected to be $47,000. This will also affect the large public shows
(Showspan's Auto, Boat, etc.), however, much of the buildings revenue is generated from
ticket sales these type of shows - thus the decrease will not be as large.

The coming fiscal year also shows the loss of two annual shows, Meijer ($66,000) has decided
to no longer do their Outlook Show, and the Vegetable Growers show has merged with the
Michigan State Horticultural Society. While the building will show an increase in revenue for
the combined show, the overall revenue generated by the combined show will be an estimated
$30,000 less that when the facility hosted two individual shows.




Expenses

Due to rising utility costs, it is expected that the facility will show an increase in expense of
$43,000.

With the new SMG management contract, the emphasis of the base fee has changed due to
the pending construction/expansion project. While the overall fee to SMG will only increase by
$16,000, the Grand Center will be increasing its share of the overall fee by $51,000.

Allocation of labor between the Grand Center and Van Ande! Arena will change with the new
fiscal year. The labor allocation associated with the General Manager and Maintenance
Manager is going to increase. As with the management fee, the overall expense for the
buildings as a whole will stay the same, however, the Grand Center will see a $36,000
increase in its share of the expense.

The budget calls for an addition of a Director of Sales. This position will add $82,000 in
expenses to the facility. While the facility will not see a large financial benefit in this fiscal year,
this will better position the facility as we look at filling dates in the new facility.

The above expectations will be tracked and compared to above. Any revisions to the above will be
seen in the revised forecasts that are done quarterly during the fiscal year.

@ Page 2



-guary Aq pred aq [[is suoneiado 1oy ATessadau Suipunj e pue ‘19jus) puein 9y Aq Yy 03 apeul 3q {jim sjuswiked yses oN

06S°L6L°T
000°011 12JU3) pueln
065°L89°1

sjuamAed Jo Arewuing

"YV0 oy 03 pred aq 0} soue[eq SUUTEWSI A1 YA ISIUSY) PUBID 3Y) 03 000°SSS SINGLIUOD [[IM BUIY 31 ZOOT YOIEJA PUE [Q0T IsnSny Jog

(rot°zo01) 000°CI1 000°91S (¥91°90¢) [e10L 06S°L6L°1 000°sC1 96.°689 P6L°TET'1 e,
(sgo1) 000°cH (L8g'esD) Zo-ung (s15°€) 000°ST £8¥°LS (866°S€) Zo-ung
(99¢€°LL) 00029 000°sy (99£°8S) T0-AeN 109°6¥ 000°0S €8Y°LS S1I°Zy Z0-KeN
0L6°9€ 000°cH (0£0°9) Z0-dy 1LLTY 000°0S €8¥°'LS 88T°S€ Z0-dy
9501 000°€y 950°001 T0-Te]N 18620C £8Y°LS 86¥°Sy1 Z0-reN
6L9°801 000°cP 6L9°69 70-994 1LP'1ST £3Y°LS 886°¢6 70-9°4
(9z0'p1) 000°cy (9z0°LS) Z0-uef 890°€9T €8¥°LS $86°60T zo-uer
L9E°6E 000°cy (££9°¢) 10-923 7€T°09T £8Y°LS 6¥L70T. 10-92d
86€°79 000°cy 86£°61 10-A0N Ls9Ll €8¥°LS 680°611 10-AON
(L68°67) 000°€y (L68cL) 10-320 L01°sTT €8¥°LS $Z9°L91 10-°0
(191°21) 000°ch (191°s5) 10-des 00£°sST £8¥°LS L18°L6 10-dog
(s81°291) 000°0S 000°cy (881°551) 10-3ny SLTPST £8¥°LS S6L°96 10-8ny
(609°98) 000°sy (609°621) 10-Inf yTL611 €8¥°LS 1¥TT9 10-Inf
[el0L —S_QQO momﬁﬁb 05005 aoz ﬁcoz [B101, _SMQMU mumu:maD QuIOodU] N YuoN
JAUID) pueIH BUALY [9pUY UBA
SMO]J Yse)) Jo Aremwing

AUoyny eualy/uonusAuo)) Aiuno)) jusyy - spidey puern
I3jua)) puRIH/BUAIY [SpUY UEA - DS




Grand Rapids — Kent County

Convention / Arena
Authority

GRAND CENTER

Operating Budget

For Fiscal Year 6/30/2002

Budget Highlights

Income Statement

Indirect Expense Summary
Management Fee

Capital Budget

Event Detail

Staff Allocation

GM&>

An SMG Managed Facllity



SMG - Grand Center
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Budget Highlights
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2002

Overview

Fiscal year 2002 will begin the transition from the current building to the
new Convention Center. The budget will show the beginning of this
transition in both the physical change of the building, as well as, the
operation and booking of the facility.

Income

The Grand Center is expected to show a decrease of just over $300,000 in
income when compared to fiscal year 2001. Most of this decrease is due to
the loss of space in the meeting rooms from the relocation of the Devos Hall
loading dock. The rentable space has decreased, as well as, the loss of
shows dependant upon the support function of these smaller meeting rooms.

Indirect Expenses

The Grand Center is expected to show an increase in indirect expenses of
just over $200,000 when compared to fiscal year 2001.

The budget shows the addition of a Director of Sales and Director of Event
Services. Sales will be combined with Marketing through the construction
project, and the Operations department has been split into two with the
creation of the Event Services department. This split is needed due to the
increase size of the new building and currently will allow for improved
focus on both the front of house and back of house areas during
construction.

Other increases in indirect expenses are a result of an increased allocation of
the General Manager and Maintenance Manager positions from the Arena to
the Grand Center, increase in utility expense, and a redistribution of the
overall management fee under the terms of the new contract.




SMG - Grand Center
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Lead Income Statement
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2002

FY 2002 FY 2001
BUDGET EST/ACT VAR

EVENT DAYS/PERFORMANCES 318 373 (55)
ATTENDANCE 494,970 491,699 3,271

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENT 1,115635 1,307,379  (191,744)
SERVICE INCOME 17,977 29,347 (11,370)
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 1,133,612 1,336,726  (203,114)

ANCILLARY INCOME

CONCESSIONS 95,248 104,973 (9,725)
CATERING 82,777 168,194 (85,417)
NOVELTY 18,712 10,843 7,869
DECORATOR 159,392 208,671 (49,279)
ELECTRICAL 19,640 . 19,640
EQUIPMENT 124,150 134,036 (9,886)

TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 499,919 626,717  (126,798)

TOTAL EVENT INCOME 1,633,631 1,963,443 (329,912)

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

INTEREST INCOME 75,000 63,189 11,811
TICKET INCENTIVES 30,000 25,826 4,174
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 25,000 23,347 1,653
OTHER INCOME 6,000 5,244 756
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 136,000 117,606 18,394
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 1,769,531 2,081,049 (311,518)

INDIRECT EXPENSES

EXECUTIVE 81,433 59,652 (21,781)
FINANCE 145,356 133,388 (11,968)
MARKETING : 139,854 105,520 (34,334)
OPERATIONS 445,575 769,480 323,905

EVENT SERVICES 417,843 (417,843)
BOX OFFICE 60,682 57,571 (3.111)
OVERHEAD 984,945 947,771 (37,174)

TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 2,275,692 2,073,382  (202,306)

NET FACILITY INCOME (LOSS) (506,161) 7,667  (513,828)




SMG - Grand Center

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Indirect Expense Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2002

Budget Estimate
E/[Y 2002 E[Y 2001 Variance

Salaries 741,771 518,130 (223,641)
Salaries Part - Time 815,760 1,081,858 266,098
Auto Allowance 21,250 12,250 (9,000)
Payroll Taxes 138,117 140,294 2,177
Employee Benefits 98,850 71,755 (21,095)
Pension 34,263 18,993 (15,270)
Union Expenses 50,500 59,511 9,011
Allocated Salaries (1,034,006) (1,155,020) (121,014)

Total Labor Costs 866,505 753,771 (112,734)
Contracted Security 62,400 50,076 (12,324)
Meetings 20,400 7,328 (13,072)
Meals & Entertainment 8,500 1,814 (6,686)
Dues & Subscriptions 1,700 2,024 324
Professional Fees 20,000 16,650 (3,350)
Employee Training 9,200 6,325 (2,875)
Printing 8,000 2,398 (5,602)
Advertising 10,000 8,305 (1,695)
Trash Removal 32,000 24,421 (7,579)
Landscaping 4,449 4,449
Armored Services 2,100 1,927 (173)
Exterminating 4,200 3,460 (740)
Cleaning 7,500 8,642 1,142
Repairs & Maintenance 103,000 94,209 (8,791)
Snow Removal
Supplies 135,240 135,818 578
Corporate Travel 3,750 4,472 722
Computer Expenses 63,800 61,029 (2,771)
Equipment Rental 4,200 5,952 1,752
Bank Service Charges 7,500 12,050 4,550
General Liability Insurance 45,807 72,992 27,185
Property Insurance 29,000 27,267 (1,733)
Insurance Expense 28,190 27,106 (1,084)
Local Taxes 3,600 4,285 685
Printing & Stationary 3,000 2,588 (412)
Office Supplies 7,500 6,738 (762)
Postage 3,000 2,088 (912)
Parking Expense 14,000 16,004 2,004
Telephone 30,600 45,205 14,605
Utilities 516,000 477,791 (38,209)
Management Fee 225,000 184,698 (40,302)
Total Materials & Service 1,409,187 1,318,111 (91,076)
Total Indirect Expenses 2,275,692 2,071,882 (203,810)




SMG - Grand Center
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Calculation
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2002

Description of Calculation

The management fee is composed of two parts, the Base Fee

and the Incentive Fee. Fiscal Year 2002 changes the structure

of both parts of the fee. The Base Fee will be $225,000 with a
revenue benchmark equal to the gross revenue in the enclosed
budget. Due to the structure of the incentive fee, no amount

will be budgeted, however, will be included in the rolling forecast
if performance dictates.

FY 2002 FY 2001
Budget Act/Est
Base Fee 225,000 174,005
Incentive Fee
Revenue 1,769,531 2,081,265
Benchmark Revenue 1,769,531 2,027,926
Projected Revenue Increase - 53,339
Incentive Percentage 20% 20%
Total Incentive Fee - 10,668

Total SMG Management Fee 225,000 184,673




SMG - Grand Center
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Budget
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2002

Capital Improvements
Building
Devos Upgrades (See Below ***) 50,000
Refinish Devos Stage Floor 50,000 100,000
Furniture/Furnishings
Cyclorama for Devos Stagehouse 12,000
Machinery/Equipment
Total Capital Request: 112,000



(098"L28) $0S"TSE'T t99'€20'T 0SZ'v9 ovo'sT L0E'65T - 6LS'U 058'29 @vr've) 091°699 0L0°TvZ €St 513 TIVH NOLLISIHXA - V101
(8T1'0L0 6TT'6TE T00°6vT 05L'LT ovo't 6£2°9 - T0'vy 900’y (156'8) T06'v8 055'SE [ Z0T HIHL0 V104
(vEZ'99) 68Y'9L s52'0T 0s2'2 005 BOT'Z - (-2 - ©90'D §L6's 0s5'T [3 (3 sJUIIIY ¢ SIsujUDS
(£16'92) 99v'c8 6v5'95 009'¢ - S65 - €0E'9 89L'e (oge'y) €192y 0SL'€T o0 1€ Kemwry/sipupug
(5v5'S) 216'69 Lot'r9 008's 00t otz'e - 6LZ'0E 4 (555°2) §L0'¢z 009°'9 9 9 sesodioy
(£16'22) 06'ze - - - - - - - - - . - € sasueg
(89€'8Y) 6¥5'29 T8IV ootz ove 90€ 8v6'9 - [(,-72] 8EE'S oSty € 2t tonbueg
ET) 98L'E 69t . - - - - (052} 006'E 005 2 z Jupsay
LEE'TS $SE'TEE 169°EBE 00L'YT 090'S 98Y'EY T8L'Y 86E'0S 0T0'vT ¥52°162 008'IST 3 9 SMOHS DNENd T10L
€0L'SE 255°C2 SST'E9 00L'E 002 s28't - 9sT 955°9 999'L 0sT'TY 000’0y [33 []3 SMOYS JHignd ISIN
(88T ££0'S 0969 - [ - - pEE we) 00L's oov'T z z $3)qq0H ' skol,
(vEQ'y) €0E'28 vev'ee 008't oot s’y 991 8zL'0T (048D 00029 000'9T 9 9 noys yog
[ LETE 1€L'9 000'% 002 058 - s 602 006’ 009'E € z ajeg/Mous Yed
(869°€) 86218 009°'2L 008't 0002 058°'LT syt'y [4194 0s9'y 000°0% 000'0€ v v moys Je) maN
(E16'2) €16 - . - - - - - - - . . T moys ojny woisny
T8L'6 18L'€2 005 009 080'Y - 241 ose't §L0'sT 000°2T 14 v UM
(85¢°8) 09L'v8 ZOE'T9 o08't 009 019's - j14] T8LYT 0032 000'9t 000'€Z [ 14 uopieasnay @ spooy Jujeds
£58°2 966'6 168°2T 00E'Z vz 106 - . z9z (s2'D 62yt oos's € € smoys JUIPPIM
(0851} LIE'SS LEL'ES 008'T 008 02T’9 - - £98°L 0sT'T 000'9¢ 000'0Z v ¥ uIpIED 77 WOH
(6£0°'602) T£0'00L Z56°06Y 008°TE OvS'El 285°601 08£'82 o¥Y'EY (102°6€) S00'EEE 02428 [ LL SMOHSIQVHL/SNOLLNIANOD TV10L
o£8'et 250°0T 288'Z2 00S'y 0zz oov'E - S6E'T LE0'T 2Ly 050'LT 0SE'E [43 9 smoysapesl 5N
(oe'6s) 0EL’6S - - - - - - - - - - 14 ssoujsng (307
190°'12 182°69 WE'06 000'T oop'T 056'6€ 2s 096's (ozo'e) 000’05 000’9 z € Supri0mpoom
(981'8T) 98T'ST - - - - - - - - - - I3 e
(225'9) 6v6'ET 'L - [1-14 95T'T - 809 usz'n §28'9 008't € € $3)qqoH p sho)
(691°95) 69T'95 - - - - - - - . . - L snojdyey
(evz'zn) 3 x4 - - - - . - - 4 o3 w3y
(059°2T) 05921 - - - - - - - . - 4 tesptod
(9LD 080'8Y poE'LY 05¢ 008 095'TT we't [ 000°'VE 000'¢ € € $eY %P WNdjoNdd
(oTT'TI) 190'sT T66'E 003 [ 089 14 (o19) S26'T 005 z z 317D YUINFH 7 IWDIPIN
(012’52} otz'se z Jojsag) g sFujysjINg Swoy
(tz2'9) 9LE'ST §51'6 - 002 oeg'e - (72 szv'e 0052 z € Ausnpuj Jraaung
688'sZ 158'8 ovL'vE 008'2 00€ 065 . §85'T (500°2) 008'¢2 009'2 € T uolInqIsIq 7 3u)s3adoig pood
(002'9) 00L'9 T s3esoag 3 poog
TE€L 866'vE 62L'SE 000'T 08s SoT'Y - 9T gs8 (068) 000'0E 000°E € € QInYNdILOH 7 S2nyinojlo)d
(00T°Z2) 088°ZYT 08£'02T 00€°2T 086'T 999's1 - voT'01 5922 (529'01) 080'98 oLL'Tt E4 129 vojeanp3
(£9L’S) €9L'S - - - - - - - . - - - T inwag
9T9'vT ST6'62 TESVY oov't oze's otL'ot 092 6EL (8ve'e) 0sv'sz 000’9 [ [ uopanAsue) 7§ ulpling
(96L'9) T25'v2 s2L'LT 004'T 00z 012’z ST2'E - (oav) 008'0T 000t € € 2.u3 Jjei 19 Linvag
945'91 9£8'9T 0002 oot 02L'T 81s 8e2 (1. 2] 00L'TT 000'2 z - Buprueg
(881'S) 00Y'9E TIE 000'€ oz8 o9L'y - 258'6 we't (166°c) 00»°ST 00v'9 S 9 suoje[r0ssY
(T2L'e0) TL'et sjnwy |
(Z¥9'TE) Sp2'ov £09'8 05¢ 00t $8L°'T - £SE 0L (s08) 058'S 008 € € Sujuuey p 2imnopdy

1002 Ad 2002 Ad wodu| swoay) Lo Wodyj autoou| WU wodu} wody| dUCpUINY UAT UIA3 STIVH M8IKG3

3ONVINVA 3WOONI 3WOINI wawdinby [t ] J0je1023Q &rasoN Jupayed UO|SSIINI0Y SIS 1nuay 19 ON 0N
LNIA3 AN3A3 2002 T00Z

2007 ‘of ounr Buppug Jwa) (o3

Aremuing ssuRdxy 133npul

Kuoypny suaayuopuaiue) Huno) Juy - spidey pussy
IUID) prean) - NS

10.



(£60'0EE) 29'€96'T TES'EES'T ov9'et 268'65T [375°14 L'zs 8v2's6 6L6'LT 0L6'v6Y [33 SONIATING TV * TVL0L
(€€2°2) 0zZT'2T 188'609 S8 st 861's 86€'LZ 61128 006'€SZ [£13 HSTIM/TIVH SOA3G - V101
(ves's2) $00'8L 0EY'ZS s8 oov'2 S6T'E (174 4 osL'vT 1 6 SLN3A3 HSTIM OSIW
9LE'TL T00'vE LLE'SOT - 258'01 8299 S8L'8 osz'oy 14 14 SLN3AT SOA3Q ISIN
(vTO'ST) BIT'202 $OT'£81 096'T 90y 88Y's 16°L 002'88 6t ] ANOHJWAS 49
(rLy'sy) w9'86T L9T'eST 005'E - ut's oSz 000'v8 95 95 GND IYLVIHL AVMTYOUS
0EE'T2 158'08 189'1S - TEY'T SZS'E 000'ZT 9 v VH3dOo 4D
(£18°8) 500'69 821'09 - - 6L0'T 085'9 00L'PT £1 T 137Ive ¥9

TOO0Z Ad 2002 A 3WOONL 3WOINI 3WOONI 3WOONI IWOON! 30Nva SIN3A3 VNIYY HSTAMW/TIVH SOA3a

FINVIIVA IWOONL 3WOINI LIVHILHY ALTIAON ONISLVO  3DVHIAIE  3JIAN3S “NaLLY JOON
AN3A3 AN3A3 ANV Q003 13N

Kypsoany euasy /uonueauod) Kuncd Jua) - spidey pues

2002 "0f aunr Jupu Jeay (easi4

Kewwing asuadx3 PaJput

19D pURSD - DUS

11.




SMG - Grand Center
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Budget Highlights
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2002

This page outlines the allocation of personnel who have responsibilities for
the Grand Center and VanAndel Arena. In order to maintain two separate
sets of accounting records, there needs to be an agreement on the sharing

of some common expenses. These allocations have been reviewed as part
of the budgeting process. With the start of the Grand Center construction
project, the General Manager and Maintenance Manager with be allocated
an additional 1/3 to the Grand Center from Arena. This budget also includes
the addition of a Director of Sales and Director of Event Services.

Grand Center Arena
Position Allocation Allocation
General Manager 50% 50%
Director of Finance 50% 50%
Director of Operations 67% 33%
Director of Marketing 50% 50%
Director of Sales 100% 0%
Director of Event Services 100% 0%
Facility Maintenance Manager 67% 33%
Box Office Manager 30% 70%
Bookkeeper 50% 50%
Human Resources 50% 50%
GM Secretary 33% 67%
Marketing Admin. Asst. 67% 33%
Receptionist 50% 50%

120



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

Grand Rapids — Kent County
Convention / Arena
Authority

VAN ANDEL ARENA

Operating Budget
For Fiscal Year 6/30/2002

* Budget Highlights

*

Lead Income Statement

*

Indirect Expense Summary

*

Management Fee

*

Capital Projects

*

Event Summary

*

Salary Allocation

GM&>

An SMG Managed Facllity

13.



SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Budget Highlights
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2002

Overview

Fiscal year 2002 is one of change for the Arena as we lose the Grand Rapids
Hoops and their 28 event days. However, this will allow for the Griffins to
have more weekend dates and increased potential for the calendar to be
filled with more unique events.

Income

The Van Andel Arena is expected to show a decrease in revenue of just
under $300,000. This decrease is due to the loss of the Hoops, the Ringling
Brothers Circus decision to go to every other year scheduling, the loss of the
Meijer Outlook show, and an overall decrease in corporate type events.

The Arena does show a revenue increase from Griffins games as their
schedule should be more heavily weighted to the weekends with the Hoops
not taking up some of the dates. The Arena shows an increase in food &
beverage as a result of projected higher attendance, as well as, a decrease in
changeover expense as the building will not be going through as many
conversions.

Indirect Expenses

The Van Andel Arena is expected to show a decrease in indirect expense of
just under $100,000.

This decrease is mainly due to the increased allocation of the General
Manager and Maintenance Manager to the Grand Center from the Arena,
and the management fee redistribution as the Grand Center will be
expensing a larger portion of the overall fee.

Since most expenses for an event are included in the overall revenue
calculation for an event, the loss of the Hoops will show a minimal effect on
indirect expenses.

14‘



SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Budget Highlights
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2002

EVENT DAYS/PERFORMANCES
ATTENDANCE

D!RECT EVENT INCOME
RENT
SERVICE INCOME
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME

ANCILLARY INCOME
CONCESSIONS
CATERING
NOVELTIES
VIDEO BOARD
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
LUXURY SEATING
PERMANENT ADVERTISING
INTEREST INCOME
TICKET INCENTIVES
MISCELLANEOUS INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME

ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES

NET FACILITY INCOME (LOSS)

FY 2002  FY 2001
BUDGET  EST/ACT VAR,
118 158 (40)
711,300 780,333  (69,033)
1,566,595 1,967,011  (400,416)
(489,000) (552,603) 63,603
1,077,595 1,414,408 (336,813)
977,875 1,034,047  (56,172)
79,799 98,777  (18,978)
232,552 215,138 17,414
42,294 32,645 9,649
1,332,520 1,380,607  (48,087)
2,410,115 2,795,015  (384,900)
956,175 832,406 123,769
503,506 507,384 (3,878)
90,000 115817  (25,817)
75,000 83,087 (8,087)
75,000 66,865 8,135
1,699,681 1,605,559 94,122
4,109,796 4,400,574  (290,778)
82,334 96,291 13,957
151,806 134,126  (17,680)
147,483 158,311 10,828
1,019,556 1,039,678 20,122
109,722 103,149 (6,573)
114,218 106,913 (7,305)
36,676 33,658 (3,018)
1,215,202 1,274,531 59,329
2,876,992 2,946,653 69,660
1,232,804 1,453,921  (221,117)

15.



SMG - Grand Center
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Indirect Expense Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2002

Budget Estimate
EX 2002 EXY 2001 Yariance
Salaries 569,325 514,278 (55,047)
Salaries Part - Time 789,577 855,820 66,243
Auto Allowance 9,725 8,769 (956)
Payroll Taxes 134,206 109,469 (24,737)
Employee Benefits 116,013 98,342 (17,671)
Pension 40,066 22,102 (17,964)
Union Expenses 53,480 43,922 (9,558)
Allocated Salaries (778,870) (684,456) 94,414
Total Labor Costs 933,522 968,246 34,724
Contracted Security 198,000 191,872 (6,128)
Meetings 13,200 9,427 (3,773)
Meals & Entertainment 5,100 4,572 (528)
Dues & Subscriptions 1,300 3,113 1,813
Professional Fees 24,500 21,300 (3,200)
Employee Training 11,700 7,677 (4,023)
Printing 24,000 21,587 (2,413)
Advertising 30,000 33,578 3,578
Trash Removal 15,000 14,349 (651)
Landscaping 3,500 3,380 (120)
Armored Services 3,600 3,417 (183)
Exterminating 4,000 3,713 (287)
Cleaning 29,400 26,897 (2,503)
Repairs & Maintenance 128,000 120,678 (7,322)
Snow Removal 0 - -
Supplies 181,100 185,084 3,984
Corporate Travel 7,500 9,630 2,130
Computer Expenses 63,800 33,051 (30,749)
Marketing Fund 45,000 42,643 (2,357)
Equipment Rental 7,800 17,726 9,926
Bank Service Charges 14,000 12,017 (1,983)
General Liability Insurance 64,017 56,260 (7,757)
Property Insurance 31,000 29,814 (1,186)
Insurance Expense 43,132 41,473 (1,659)
Local Taxes 3,600 6,062 2,462
Printing & Stationary 11,000 9,948 (1,052)
Office Supplies 12,000 12,039 39
Postage 12,600 11,306 (1,294)
Parking Expense 19,100 18,220 (880)
Telephone 51,600 50,599 (1,001)
Utilities 689,800 656,545 (33,255)
Management Fee 225,000 326,783 101,783
Amortization 5,889 23,559 17,670
Allocated Expenses (35,758) (29,912) 5,846
Total Materials & Service 1,943,480 1,978,407 34,927
Total Indirect Expenses 2,876,992 2,946,653 69,651




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Calculation
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2002

Description of Calculation

The management fee is composed of two parts, the Base Fee
and the Incentive Fee. Fiscal Year 2002 changes the structure
for the base fee as the Grand Center will be expensing a larger
share of the overall fee. The incentive fee calculation stays the
same as the revenue benchmark will continue to be increased
by the percentage change in the CPI-U.

FY 2002 FY 2001
Budget Act/Est
Base Fee 225,000 262,185
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,109,796 4,400,574
Benchmark Revenue 4,199,913 4,077,585
Projected Revenue Increase - 322,989
Incentive Percentage 20% 20%
Total Incentive Fee - 64,598
Total SMG Management Fee 225,000 326,783

17.



SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Budget
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2002

Capital Improvements
Building
Refurbish of Suites 125,000
Furniture/Furnishings
Machinery/Equipment
Total Capital Request: " 125,000

18.



[(0o6‘¥8E) 610'S6L'2 STT'0TV'e v6Z'et 255'2ET, 66L'6L GL8'LLE (000'68t) 665'99S'T 00E'TTL 81T 85T IVLOL ANVHD]
(z2L'T6T) $£9'86€ 216'10Z . 008'S 166'8T 000'9Y 191'1T 000'02T 00€'95 33 [ SNONVT13OSIW TVL0L
(Les'y) ovz'TY €0V'9E - - §ZZ't 000'C 8LT'E 000'6Z 000°S 3 T UIWOM 40 IO WLL
60€ 816'% Lee's - - s 00S'E (s28's) 005'L 000' T T moys 24m3|d 40110 Axd0Y
(80£°29) 80E'Z9 € Jeujwag Aemwy
(ov2'8e) 12414 [4 v3dQ spydey puwsn
(69t't2) T98've 268°2T - - 8L 00s's 509'T 000's 002'C T T |vARSD3 1SN YSNE SOATY J89ID
(0£2'98) 0£2'98 4 Jeupwag afviuey
(629'5) Wo'Ls AW'ts - - ooL'vt 000°0T fiv4 005'22 005'S € v sjanburg SnoaUR)|ISIN
0L0'8L 0L0'8L - 005'S osL't 000'0Z 028's 000'sY 000'0E € - upy Ausag
(£z0'vy) Lzo'ry z yoonng 13fiow
(686'2T) 686'ZT [4 uopeInp3
vea's 22T 806°LT - - Ley - wy'e 000'sT 009°TT z 2z uopenpesn 9331109
LST'EY 618'62T'T 9L6°ZLT'T - ZEE'BLT 052'61 008'vOv V65'v9 000'905 000'9LT 2 [13 SMOHS ATIWV4 TV.L0L
(Tve'1e) 85T's8 LIE'eS - 901’8 S8 00v'st 9£6'C 000°'€C 000'8 T [ URRSIHD
(goL'cs) 0zZo'vYT LIE'ES - 901's sL8 oot'st 9£6'C 000'€2 000'8 T € Knunoy
10£'§9T 1¥9'006 2re'990'T . ozr'z9t 00S'CY 000'89¢ z2L'ss 000'09Y 000'09T "4 L 120y
(18p'sD) T9L'26Y 082'6LY - 09.'2¢ 68’9 $18'991 (6vL'S8T) 005'95Y 000221 I3 [ SMOHS ATIWY4 TV.iOL
(£69) £9€'ES 999°ZS - 002'Y SIE 000'vZ (ev8°LT) 000'ZY 000°ST € € 1IN Jsuol
256'T gsy'ze syv've - . S8 000°0Z zy'sn) 00029 000'0T z 2 SIIPIY 1Ing (RUO|SSOjOId
§22'T TZV'0L av9'2L - 095'L 8L SZT'9E 928'72) 000'TS 000'LT € € SSOITUNY
6152 9£6'sY S6v°'8Y . [\1¢r4 [3:14 00072 (002's2) 000'LY 00021 z z oapoy souosg put siing
(586'LT) $86'LT T suojjjRis Jouezzidr)
SET'EY SE'EY - 095'L s2s 00S'ET (0s8'st) 005'L9 000°8T 9 - sjiey uodwig
(86T'y) TIv'oL £12'99 - 00£'9 sc8 0s2's ssL'y 000'9% 00s'8 T 1 22| Uo sIB}S
(eve'e) g0v'6S $90'eS - 025'2 oov't 000'8 SYT'9 000'SE 000'8 T T 93] ug suojdweyy
(592'€) S92t - . - - . - . - - 4 sdopsadng
6LL'1E €8L'S2 295°LS - - zIe't 000'sZ (osL'8s) 000°06 000’82 8 I3 93} uo Aausig
(Z19's) 295'92 056'02 - 0TE'Z ozy 0008 (o8L'0 000'8T 005'S T T SI13R0N0)D WIlITH
(160'25) 160'LS - - - - - - - - . L ssaqiosg Bupdupy
(y58'222) 108'8LL LY6'SSS v6Z'ey 096'ST $OL'VE 00Z'09€ (90£'6L€) $60'Z8Y 000'(SE 85 78 S1HOdS TVI0L
(9£8°¢8) 926'L0T 060'02 - - 8L 000’9 £0E'E 000°0T 0009 z z sjuaweLInG], |leqioxseg 9331109
SLL'T S§S'ST 0gE'LT - - 0S€ 005'L 086'T 005'L 000'y T 9 eqiaseg 939{[0) S,USWOM
Le0'ZY 285'9Y 619'88 - 096'ST 0SE 000'ZE (169'%) 000°st 000'LT € T Buipsasm [euo)ss3joid
(0S6°TT) 056'TT T HegAa)ioA jeuossajold
(rv8'6oT) 8601 F4 awewitiof Kaxdo} 933100
(s9v'01) £05°2E 6£0'22 08L - szT'T 000'8T vE0'T - 000'8 T T UosSZAsAId THN
(95¢'8) 098's Yor'T 869'G . - - (69v'09) SLT'9S 000'9 L L uosEeg Juindoy adedwey
(evs'T) L't 102 vi8 - - - (8£9'8) 520’8 000'8 T 1 uoseasasd advdwey
(ego'oT) ££9°9T - - - - - - - - . 4 sjjokeld SUHD
TS8'ET LTS'E9E 89€'L8E pLE'EE - $05'0E 006'282 (5£2'862) $98'gEE 000'9%2 1w ) 8 uosuag suIN3Y SUPID
T°e'y S26'eT 968'8T 829'T - 88Y'T 008'ET (0ss'yD) 0£5'9T 0002t 4 z uoSwISIId SULHID
(852°'8Y) 8sL'sy . . - . - - - - - 8T Jeqioyseg sdooy
TOOZ Ad 200T Ad Swody| ] | | ] P AT NUIAJ 3adAL INIAA
FONVI¥VA 3WOINI 3WOONI pavog 03piA K3 Buy l s |muay JOON JOON
AN3A3 AN3A3 2002 1002

2002 ‘0g dunp 3ujpu3 Jea, (RIS
Kirwwing Juaa3
Kjotpny euasy 7 UoUIALOD Kunod Juay - spidey puein
RUALY [SPUY URA - SNS

19.



SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Budget Highlights
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2002

This page outlines the allocation of personnel who have responsibilities for
the Grand Center and VanAndel Arena. In order to maintain two separate
sets of accounting records, there needs to be an agreement on the sharing

of some common expenses. These allocations have been reviewed as part
of the budgeting process. With the start of the Grand Center construction
project, the General Manager and Maintenance Manager with be allocated
an additional 1/3 to the Grand Center from Arena. This budget also includes
the addition of a Director of Sales and Director of Event Services.

Grand Center Arena
Position Allocation Allocation
General Manager 50% 50%
Director of Finance 50% 50%
Director of Operations 67% 33%
Director of Marketing 50% 50%
Director of Sales 100% 0%
Director of Event Services 100% 0%
Facility Maintenance Manager 67% 33%
Box Office Manager 30% 70%
Bookkeeper 50% 50%
Human Resources 50% 50%
GM Secretary 33% 67%
Marketing Admin. Asst. 67% 33%
Receptionist 50% 50%

20.



M JJ]

VAN ANDEL ARENA WEEKLY

=

DATE EVENT EC ROOM TIME FUNCTION

Wed, May 16 | Carmen AH | Arena 8A-10:30P Musicians set-up
1:00 PM Chair set

Thur, May 17 | Carmen AH | Arena 8A-6P Set-up continued
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-11P Open Rehearsal

Fri, May 18 Carmen AH | Arena Dark day

Sat, May 19 Carmen AH | Arena 1:00 PM Final checks
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-11P Performance

Carmen JS | Banquet C/D 6A-8P Crew catering

Sun, May 20 [ Carmen AH | Arena 8:00 AM Load-out

Mon, May 21 | Available

Tue, May 22 | Available

Wed, May 23 | Available

Thur, May 24 | Available

Fri, May 25 Available

Sat, May 26 Boxing AH | Arena 8:00 PM Mayweather vs. Hernandez fight

Sun, May 27 | Rampage vs Tampa Bay MS | Arena 3P-6P Football game

Mon, May 28 | Available

Tue, May 29 | Available

Wed, May 30 | Available

Thur, May 31 | Available

Fri, Jun | Available

Sat, Jun 2 Rampage vs Detroit MS | Arena 7:30P-10:30P | Football game

Sun, Jun 3 Available

Mon, Jun 4 Available

Tue, Jun 5 Davenport University MS | Arena 6:00 PM Graduation ceremonies

Wed, Jun 6 Available

Thur, Jun 7 Available

Fri, Jun 8 Available

Sat, Jun 9 Available

Sun, Jun 10 Available




100Z AVAAX - ADIIIM JFINTD ANVHED

dRILS ISNOH vdl
1NO FIAON d0€:01
18 FONVINIOLHAd -d0€:6dOE:$-dE IAD O1d — INILOVY LT AVIA 'NNS
JONVINHOIIAd dog:01-d8
1S JONVINIOIAd dOE:-dT /AQ DLg — ANLLOVY 9T AVIA "LVS
LS FONVIODIA do€:01-d8 /Ad D1g - INLLOVY STAVI N4
(0£-0Z ¥O4 WOOUSSV'ID 13S) 97 IDVIOVd
WS ONLLITN ds-vs nid ¥Od ONLLITN qIgTdd
FONVINYOLYAd d01-dO€:L
1S FONVINIOIIAd d0g:-dz /AQ D19 - INLLOVY T AVIN SUNHL
1S FJONVINIOIHAd d01-dO€:L /Ad OLd - FNLLOVY
1NO JAON d~NOON
FONVINIOIIAd dST:ZI-VSH:01
18 ONINIVYL YFFLNNTOA VO0€£:8 VM LYFINOD SSADIV OSUD £ZAVIA ‘ddm
NS ONLLIIN VOI-V0E:8 nig ONLLITN NOLLONYLSNOD
LNO FIAON dIN-d0€:6
AANNIA d0£:6-d0E:S FANNIA
IN NI JAON ds-v6 /HO SSANISAE NI IONTTTIOXT
FJONVINIOIYad dOT1-dO€:L /Ad
TVSAVIHTY VYLSIHOUO ds-vs MHM
IS NI JAON ds-v8 /AQ OLd - JNLLOVYH
IS TVSYVAHTI d0g:¢-d0g:T1 VM LIFINOD SSTDIV OSYD TTAVI 'Sanl
FIANNIA
JA dN LAS/NI JAON ds-vé /HO SSANISNE NI ADNITIIOXT
ONILITN dOE:1-dSPTl
HONN'T dOt:ZI-NOON
sa SIARNRIY LNIITD VOl VM HONNT 9070 JINONODT
NI IAON AIN-dL
SNOILIANY do1-d9 /Ad
O Tdd d9-dI /HD €/1
1S (3S1v133S) dRILS ISNOH NOON-V6 /AQ D1d - INLLOVY 1Z AVIN 'NOW
1S NI IAON d0g:01-dOg:L VM LIAINOD SSTADIV OSYD
1NO IAON 1NO IAON
FONVINIOIYAd dogis-de
ONILVAS OL N3dO $300d dov'T
TVSIVAHTI HOAL dov:z-d1
ONIARYV SLNAANLS dsvizl
1S ____NIFAOW NOON-V8 /AQ HLNOA OSYD 0T AVIA 'NNS
LANONVE d0£:01-dOE:L
NAdO dvd HSVD dog:0l-dL
YAA0 IDONVHD A2IN0O dL-dog:€
1NO FAON dOEb-d€ SADIAYAS IONVININY
sa SLIFHXT dg-vol HD 40 NOLLVIDOSSV IN 61 AVIA "LVS
NOILLLAdWOD/NI IAON dL-vi M
ONNALSINOTS WVAL dL-vi /AGOT VMV
SLIaiHXx3 dog:L-dOog T SHOIAYAS IONVINGAY
sa NI JAON dl-vs Ji309) 40 NOLLVIDOSSY TN 81 AV TMd
NI JAOW OLNV ds-ds SADIAYIS FONVINGNY
sa dn L3S VI dZ-vol1 MHD 40 NOILLVIDOSSY I
sa AVNINFS dr-vo€:9 N NOSJWOH.L L1I0avd L1 AVIN S¥NHL
NS ONLLITN NOON-V01 ng ONLLIFN ONS 9L AVIN ‘gdm
"gasO10 SWO0Y HNILITN T1V
“TIVM 3OVLSOVE SOATA TTVLSNI
‘VIYV LVH QIVH _NOLLITOWAd JWVY DNV
| D1 NOLLONQA ANIL NO0Y NOLLDNYLSNOD INIAT a1vd




SLISIHXE ds-vé
sd NI SYOANIA vg NIWHD QILINIING SQYIE ATIM ST NN "NOW
1NOFAON | VOETI-dOE0!
FONVINIOIY3d dOE:01-d0E L
ONILVIS OL $300d dog:L
1s NI JAOW d§-NOON /AQ 7134S0D 40 SVAIA LYTHO
ALYV MIIATEd d0£°8-d9
NI d9-d0€:s
sa NI JAOW dtrv9 NINHO QALINIINA SQ¥IE QTIM vZ ANOS 'NOS
ONILIAN am-ds
E ONLLIIW dOE:T1-VOE'6 /AQ WVIL ANILS3A
NI IAOW d01-d9
sa d0 135 YOLV¥OOAd d9-v3 NINHD QELINIING SQIE QTIM £2ANOS LVS
ONILIAN an-dL
I NI IAOW d9-NOON /Ad AYIL ANILSIA ZZ ANOS Tid
1Z INAS ‘SYNHL
0Z ANNI ‘AIM
WS ONILIIW VOI-VOE:g N ONILITN NOLIDNUISNOD 61 ANNS "SANL
81 INNI NOW
L1ENOL 'NOS
91 ANNI "LVS
100 IAOW d49-d0€:Y
dN ONLLIAW dOEH-VOE'S Jat:l ONINIVYL THVM140S SWII ST ANNS ‘Tid
N ONILIAW dOE-V0E'8 ng ONINIVYL SHVMIJOS SWIJ | 1 SNAf SINHL
AN ONLLIAW dOET-VOE' ng ONINIVYL TIVM140S SWId €1 NI "aam
WS ONLLITW YOI-VOE:8 N ONILIFN NOLLDNUISNOD
N ONLLIIW dOE-YOE'8 at:| ONINIVYL SMVMI40S SWId 21 INOS SANL
e ONLLIIW dOET-VOE'S g ONINIVYL THVMLIOS SWIA L1 INAS ‘NOW
Ei NI AOW NOON-V6 ng ONINIVIL TIVMLIOS SWII 01 NN 'NOS
LNOJAON | dOE11-40€:01
FONVIANOINAd d0£:01-d8
ONILYS OL S$400d dOE:L
¥I1II! OL SY00A dL
1s NI JAOW dL-dg /AQ ¥NOL AQINOD AVARI LXAN 6 ANNS LVS
100 IAOW
ONLLIAW
1s NI SAOW /AQ NVA¥IANOZ
WS ONILIIN NOON-V$ g ONLLATW ALID 8 ANOS Tid
L ANOS "SYNHL
9 ANOI ‘dIM
WS ONILIAN YOI-V0E8 g ONLLIFN NOLLONYISNOD $ INOf saNL
¥ ANOS "NOW
£ INOL 'NOS
ZANOL LVS
L ANNS T
1€ AV 'SYNHL
0€ AVIN "ddM
WS ONLLIIW VOI-VOE'8 g ONILIFN NOLLONYLSNOD 62 AVIN 'S3NL
82 AYN 'NOW
23 NOLLONNA AWIL (o]0} NOLLDNWISNOD INTAT ALVa




1NO JAON

JONVINIOIIId
SI00d
1S NI JAONW VM ANOL dOH dIH S.AVIDVIS 0€ ANNS LVS
6C ANOM TIA
8C INNI SYNHL
LT INNC AIM
AN ONLLITN dO€b-VOE:-8 Jk:1| ONILIFA NOLLONYLSNOD
LNO FIAON dot-ds
SLIFIHX3 ds-vé
sda NI SHOONTA V8 NIN'HO JILINFINN ST dTIM 9C ANNS 'SANL
oL | NOLLONNA JNILL | AN(010}: NOLLONY.LSNOD JINIAH alLvda




